ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 12, 2013
8:04 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bob Lynn, Chair
Representative Wes Keller, Vice Chair
Representative Lynn Gattis
Representati ve Shel |l ey Hughes
Represent ati ve Doug | saacson
Represent ati ve Jonat han Krei ss- Tonki ns

VEVBERS ABSENT
Representative Charisse MIlett
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 46

"An Act relating to regulations adopted by the Departnent of
Adm nistration waiving the comercial nmotor vehicle driving
skills test for certain drivers with mlitary comrercial notor
vehi cl e experience."

- MOVED HB 46 QUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 46

SHORT TITLE: WAIVE CDL SKILL TEST FOR CERTAI N VETERANS
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) SADDLER

01/ 16/ 13 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/7/13

01/ 16/ 13 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 16/ 13 (H) STA, TRA

02/ 12/ 13 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE DAN SADDLER

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: As sponsor, presented HB 46.

MARK SAN SQUCI, Regional Liaison Northwest

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- February 12, 2013



Def ense State Liaison Ofice

O fice of the Deputy Assistant Secretary of Defense

Deputy Under Secretary of Defense (MIlitary Community and Fam |y
Pol i cy)

U S. Departnent of Defense (DoD)

Tacoma, Washi ngton

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 46.

AVES THOWPSON, Executive Director

Al aska Trucki ng Associ ation (ATA)

Tacoma, WAshi ngton

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 46.

JAMES HASTI NGS, Menber

Vet erans Advi sory Council;

Cont r act or

Hero To Hred (H2H)

U. S. Departnent of Defense (DoD)

Wasi |l a, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 46.

AMY ERI CKSON, Director

Di vi sion of Mdtor Vehicles

Department of Adm nistration (DOA)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided information during the hearing on
HB 46.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

8. 04: 38 AM

CHAIR BOB LYNN called the House State Affairs Standing Conmttee
nmeeting to order at 8:04 a.m Representatives |saacson, Keller
Gattis, Hughes, Kreiss-Tonkins, and Lynn were present at the

call to order

HB 46- WAI VE CDL SKILL TEST FOR CERTAI N VETERANS

8:05:18 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the only order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 46, "An Act relating to regulations adopted by the
Departnment of Admnistration waiving the commercial notor
vehicle driving skills test for certain drivers with mlitary
commerci al notor vehicle experience.”

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- February 12, 2013



8:06: 06 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DAN  SADDLER, Al aska State Legislature, as
sponsor, presented HB 46. He opined that that Al askans who have
honed their driving skills while in the mlitary deserve to have
that experience validated in the civilian world. He said the
proposed legislation would help Alaska veterans get |obs and
Al aska businesses get qualified drivers by acknow edging that
mlitary drivers already have experience as safe [commerci al
vehicle] drivers in some of the nobst challenging conditions in

the world. He said many of Alaska's industries, including
tourism oil field services, construction, and retail service
require their enployees to hold commercial driver's |icenses
(CDLs) .

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER stated that in 2011, the federa
governnment nmade changes in law to allow states to waive the
skills tests for a CDL for recent veterans with recent driving
experience and clean driving records. He said the Federal Mtor
Carrier Safety Admnistration (FMCSA) is encouraging states to
al l ow such wai vers. He reported that as of January 9, 2013, 34
states had waived the skills test, 10 states are working on
simlar waiver bills, and 7 states, including Al aska, do not
currently accept the waiver. He said HB 46 directs the
Department of Administration to adopt regulations in accordance
with federal law to all ow such waivers, which would provide jobs

for veterans and qualified drivers for Al aska businesses. He
named the followng individuals as being in support of the
proposed | egislation: Mark San Souci, the regional |iaison for

the U S. Departnent of Defense; Aves Thonson, the executive
di rector of the Alaska Trucking Association; and Bruce
Bustamante, who is associated with the cruise |ine industry.

8:08: 25 AM

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON conmmended the sponsor for HB 46, and he
opined that the bill is tinely. He asked why other states have
preceded Al aska in offering the waiver.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER said that Al aska would have been one of
the first states to offer the waiver if a "good faith effort”
had made it through the | egislative process in 2012.

8:09: 26 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES of fered her understanding that the federal
| anguage requires the mlitary veteran to have driven a

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- February 12, 2013



commercial vehicle within 90 days of applying for the waiver.
She asked if there is any |leeway regarding the 90 days; she
ventured that sone mlitary veterans my have two years of
experience and be very skilled but be past the 90-day nark.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER offered his understanding that there is
no leeway regarding the 90 days; however, he offered his
understanding there is a standardized formon which the mlitary
veteran's driving record and other information is witten.

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES asked if mlitary veterans would be
i nformed about the 90-day tinme [imt.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER answered he believes so. He i ndicated
that the mlitary nenbers' blogs he has seen on |line show that

this [federal] waiver is available, and there are lists in
circulation showing which states have adopted the waiver and
whi ch have not. He remarked that wth the drawdowns of

aut hori zed positions in the mlitary, the Pentagon is increasing
its efforts to informits outgoing personnel of the avail able
opportunities.

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES encouraged sending word out through
Al aska's mlitary bases.

8:12: 08 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES asked iif mlitary comerci al driver
training prepares drivers for the snow and icy conditions
preval ent in Al aska.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER responded that notor transport operators
are trained at Fort Wod, in Mssouri, and he said he does not

think there is much snow and ice there. He indicated that
[mlitary] notor transport operators face hazardous conditions
around the world. He said he does not know if the specific

training reginmen includes learning to steer out of a skid, for
exanple, but he surmsed that "that's probably part of the
standard educational package for drivers."

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES ventured that a simulator, if used, could
simul ate ice and snow conditions.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER said he suspects that any veteran who

gets hired to operate a commercial vehicle in A aska would "go
t hrough whatever training to make sure things were polished up.”

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- February 12, 2013



8:13:32 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER said at the tine he got his CDL, there was

no training required for a state CDL. He said, "There is the
si mul at or, and there is the potential, but there's no
requi renent specifically for that, so ... I don't think it would

be realistic to add that as a condition on the mlitary."
8:.13:57 AM

REPRESENTATIVE GATTIS said her training for a CDL did not
include training in the ice and snow.

8:14: 25 AM
CHAI R LYNN rel ayed that he drove a truck in Vietnam
8:15:14 AM

MARK SAN SOUCI, Regional Liaison Northwest, Defense State
Liaison Ofice, Ofice of the Deputy Assistant Secretary of
Def ense, Deputy Under Secretary of Defense (Mlitary Comrunity
and Famly Policy), US. Departnent of Defense (DoD), testified
in support of HB 46. He reported that as of Septenber 2012,
736,000 veterans were unenployed, and the jobless rate for
veterans following [the terrorist attacks of Septenber 11, 2001]
was 9.9 percent, with an unenploynent rate for nmale veterans
ages 18-24 of 18.1 percent. He said that in the past two years,
25 states have enacted new laws to grant veterans |icensing,
academ c, and occupational credit. He nentioned 24 bills
resenbling [HB 46] in 18 states, and he indicated that the DoD
would like the legislature to support simlar bills, such as HB
84, which pertain to other occupations.

MR. SAN SOUCI reported that tractor/trailer driving ranks in the
top ten of all mlitary occupational specialties; it is the
second highest occupation in the US. Arny, wth alnost 8
percent skilled in it, and the second highest occupation in the
US Mrines, with over 5 percent skilled in it. He nenti oned
an on |ine occupational network, which reported that the truck
driving field is one of the brightest outlook fields, with a
faster than average job growh projected to be between 20 and 28
percent, with over 100,000 new jobs opening between 2010 and
2020.

MR. SAN SQUCI conti nued:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- February 12, 2013



You all have already paid for this veterans' training
within the DoD schools and wth the vyears of
experience while serving our nation with our federa
tax dollars, and you may well know that a lot could
(indisc.) of veterans, and the 2012 defense manpower
data center study reported that Alaska had 1,231
mlitary separate or retire back to Alaska in fisca
year 2012, so at around 1,231 annually, you can expect
that many highly qualified ex-mlitary people wll
continue to enjoy Alaska's quality of life, and many
will continue to choose Alaska when choosing to
transition into civilian careers.

MR. SAN SOUCI, regarding a previous question from Representative
Hughes, said with the passage of the federal (indisc.) Act |ast
year, mlitary people now begin to transition 18 nonths out from
their separation date; therefore, they are attuned to which

states support certain occupations, including truck driving.
Regarding driver's education, he said, "I know about how they
dodge bullets and bonmbs ..., but not necessarily about ice and

snow, but | can look further into that."
8:19: 26 AM

AVES THOWPSON, Executive Director, Alaska Trucking Association
(ATA), testified in support of HB 46. He said the ATA is an
organi zation representing the interests of a nearly 200-nenber
company. He said one of the pressing problens in the industry
is finding qualified drivers for comercial vehicles that
deliver freight. He said a lot of tinme is spent recruiting and
retaining good drivers. He noted that the regulatory bar has
been raised in the last few years to further increase the
professionalism of drivers in the industry. He enphasi zed that
truck driving is an occupation that requires a great deal of
knowl edge of regulations, as well as driving skills to navigate
| arge rigs through the highway system M. Thonpson stated that
through training and experience, Al aska's comercial vehicle
drivers have becone sonme of the best drivers in the nation, and
their skill has preserved not only their lives, but the |ives of
ot hers on the road.

MR. THOMPSON said the industry welcones returning veterans and
the opportunity to do sonething that will both support them and

hel p the industry. He stated that retired mlitary veterans
have had sone of the best truck driving training available and
wi |l have recent hands on experience driving big rigs; therefore

the ATA supports waiving the skills test for the issuance of a

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- February 12, 2013



commercial driver's licenses to those veterans. M. Thonpson
noted that he is a mlitary veteran, and he urged the conmttee
to support HB 46.

8:21: 38 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER thanked M. Thonpson for watching the
| egi sl ative process and for his hard worKk.

CHAI R LYNN said he thinks the commttee shares those sentinents.
8:22:10 AM

JAMVES HASTI NGS, Menber, Veterans Advisory Council,; Contractor,
Hero To Hred (H2H), U S. Departnent of Defense (DoD), stated
that the primary mssion of H2H is the transition of GCuard,
Reserve, and U S. Mlitary people into the civilian workforce.
He said he has been charged by the Departnment of Mlitary and
Veterans Affairs (DWA) to recruit and retain "great Anericans”
to remain in the Al aska workforce. Part of that effort is
communicating directly with each one of the U'S. Arny National
GQuard ("CGuard") and U. S. Arny Reserve ("Reserve") nenbers and to
work with the US. Arny Career and Al umi Program (ACAP). He

told Representative Hughes that while there is no formal "ice
and slick road training," hazard training is "the nost inportant
thing that we do." He said he has seen soldiers with nuch nore

experience than nost in nmuch worse situations, but with no CDL.
Regardi ng hazard training, he stated, "Yes, they are trained in

Al aska." He said, "I would recormend that ... along with the
blessing ..., we do ensure that there is sone additional
acknow edgnent and recognition - at least of the unique

conditions that we face."
8:24: 58 AM

MR. HASTINGS said ACAP is the transitional program through which
each soldier must participate once he/she has made the decision
to depart. At that point, the mlitary person is briefed on
everything that is available to himher. He reported that in
that |ast two quarters of [2012], there were 50 CDL inports into
Al aska, which neans "they exported our funds at the conpletion
of their job, because they could not |locate CDL drivers." M.
Hastings opined that there are soldiers going through training
to get their CDLs who should not have to do so, because they
al ready have that skill set, and tuition assistance funds - paid
for through the G bill - could be better spent. He said he
spoke with conpanies that related they have CDL drivers who |ack

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- February 12, 2013



experience, which he opined denonstrates how inportant it is to
get those mlitary veterans with CDLs to work.

8:26:51 AM

MR. HASTI NGS, in response to Chair Lynn, said Northern
| ndustrial Training has a [CDL training facility] in Wasilla and
one in Anchorage, and offered his understanding that the course
is six weeks and costs about $5, 000. He said the state
rei nburses up to $2,500 to nmilitary veterans, but the veterans
nmust cover the remaining $2,500, which is a |ot of noney.

8:27:45 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER said he received training in the mlitary.
He asked if there are other areas in which the state regul ates
licenses that the legislature could consider [with regard to
all owi ng wai vers for mlitary veterans].

MR. HASTINGS stated his belief that there are other areas,
i ncl udi ng wel di ng and equi pnent operations. He said he is a fan

of the wunion operators course, which is a 12-week, in-house
cour se. He said he supports allowing a waiver to "certain"
veterans, because "not everyone's got the sane |level of
capability,”™ and he recommended operating on a case-by-case
basi s. He said he |likes the opportunity to "condense sone of
this stuff.” He stated that soneone in the arnmed forces for
three years - no matter how much experience he/she has during
that time - cannot have the sane experience as a senior non-
conm ssioned officer or field-grade officer, for exanple. He
said, "I think there should be a little bit of an opportunity

for a pre-test or a pre-exam nation and say, 'Ckay, you can test
out to this portion, but we've got to get you to the final
breaki ng piece.'"

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER surm sed that additional waivers may need
to be proposed in separate |egislation.

MR. HASTINGS said he would rather see [HB 46 pass] now and
address other issues later, because a |lot of issues were mssed
| ast year that would have been nice not to have to address this
year.

8:30: 36 AM

MR. HASTINGS, in response to Representative Hughes, clarified
that the aforenmentioned $2,500 training reinbursenent applies to

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- February 12, 2013



those in the US. Arny National Guard or U 'S. Air National
Guard.

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES expressed appreciation of a plan that
coul d save state funds.

8:31:58 AM

MR. HASTINGS noted that H2H has 54 representatives across the
US., and he said he will work with any [veteran] who wants to
cone to Al aska.

8:32:35 AM

AMY ERICKSON, Director, Division of Mdtor Vehicles, Departnent
of Administration (DOA), confirmed that sponsor's statenent that
the FMCSA is urging states to adopt prograns to allow for the
aforenmenti oned waiver. She said, if asked, the DW w | fashion
its regulation according to the federal rules and HB 46.

8:33:24 AM

CHAIR LYNN, after ascertaining that there was no one else who
wi shed to testify, closed public testinony.

8:33:32 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noved to report HB 46 out of commttee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
notes. There being no objection, HB 46 was reported out of the
House State Affairs Standing Conmmtt ee.

8:34:22 AM

ADJ OURNNMENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Committee neeting was adjourned at 8:34
a.m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 9- February 12, 2013



